
CNG Fuel Facility Upgrades        Total Pages: 13  
REQUEST FOR BID # ‘17/05/B        plus one Video 

Addendum No. 3   
 September 29, 2016 

 
To: Bid Holders 
This Addendum forms a part of the Request For Bid documents and modifies the original Request For 
Bids issued August 16, 2016. Acknowledge receipt of this Addendum in the space provided on the Bid 
Form.  All other provisions of the Request For Bid documents shall remain unchanged unless expressly 
noted in this Addendum. 
 
General 
  
See attached sign-in-sheet from Pre-Bid Meeting. 
 
See attached photos of interior of the existing CNG station interior. 
 
See Video – interior of the CNG building 
 
Contractor Clarifications/Questions 
 
1. Pre Bid Meeting Agenda Notes, Item 19, it states: Owner will furnish / install cold millings around 

SW fuel islands after substantial completion of work in that area; compacted base course in this 
area by contractor.  AS-101 note 15 – Area to be rough graded.  Qs. Is there a base course other 
than dirt expected by owner prior to millings? 
Answer:  Provide a 95% compacted 6” base course below millings.  

 
2. C-102 Notes Enlarge Pond by 4,301 C.F. by steeper slope, 1:2.  Qs. Are there additional drawings 

for the western portion of the detention basin that is being enlarged?   
Answer: No. The bottom of the pond is to remain the same per Sheet C-102 Max slope at sides 
2:1   

 
3. Are we to price winter conditions on site work?   
             Answer: Per Addendum #2 two Notice To Proceeds; will be issued the first in Jan. for a sixty day 
             period of submittals and ordering long lead time material, and the second in March, for a one 
             hundred eighty day period for active construction on site. We still have frozen temperatures in  
             March, with some warmer days, then in April it is thawing with some colder days: check  
             weather website histories for Santa Fe for the last few years for detail 
 
4. Is site water available for construction use?   

Answer: Water used for dust control & moisture control must be effluent. Effluent water is 
available at the City’s waste water treatment plant, approximately one (1) mile east of NM 559 and 
Airport Road.   

 
5. Check Bollard Specification. Is Galvanized or primed required?   

Answer:  Primed and painted. 
 
 
 
 

 



6. Various Drawings indicate that the Fast-fill dispenser in Lot 4 is future install. Is this part of Base 
bid or future construction? Also, plans call for both 1/2” tubing and 3/4” tubing to this dispenser. 
Please clarify.   Sheet DG-103 – Pipe G not specified. Plans calls for future 1/2” SS tubing. Is this 
being installed as part of scope? Plan D-512 shows three (3) - 3/4” SS tubing. G-001 shows future 
3/4” lines.   Sheet E-401 – Electric for future dispenser shown.   
Answer:  Lot #4, part of the Base Bid, shall include (1) new two-hose FF CNG dispenser w/ (3) 
3/4" SS tubing supply lines in a 4" sch 40 PVC sleeve, and shall also include a separate 4" sch 40 
PVC sleeve for future CNG lines, which shall terminate in the dispenser-pit frame for the new 
dispenser indicated above.    • 3x SS tubing to new FF dispenser shall be 3/4".    • Lines G.1, G.2, 
G.3 are all to be included in the line marked 'G', running from valve panel to new FF dispenser.   
• Leave second 4" sleeve empty, for future use. 

 
7. Will carbon steel Mercer relief valves be considered an approved equal for the CNG equipment?  

Answer:  Yes, if they meet all other performance requirements. 
 
8. Please confirm that there are no enclosures requested for the CNG compressor, there are some 

conflicting requests in the specification and as shown on the drawings.   
Answer:  Provide CNG compressor skids without enclosures.  

 
9. Please confirm that the horsepower of the compressors to be 250 HP, there are some conflicting 

requests in the specification and the drawings.   
Answer:  Provide CNG compressor skids with 250 HP nameplate motors per drawings. 

 
10. Please confirm that the intended design inlet supply for the CNG compressors is 215 psig, there 

are some conflicting requests in the specification.   
Answer:  Provide equipment package based on design-typical 215 PSIG supply pressure per 
drawings. 

 
11. Please confirm if a light and gas detector are required as part of the unenclosed CNG package.  

Answer:  No, neither are required. 
 
12. Is a Horner Controller considered an approved equal?   

Answer:  Yes. 
 
13. Is a centralized site controller, with a redundant cold swap PLC back up, acceptable with 

equipment such as the compressors and valve panels having remote I/O?  If yes, will HMI's be 
required on each piece of equipment?   
Answer:  Yes, and Yes 

 
14. Typical industry standard is for a 5 gallon day tank instead of the 10 gallon tank specified.  Is it 

acceptable to provide a 5 gallon day tank in lieu of the 10 gallon tank requested?   
Answer:  Yes, 5 gallon is Okay. 

 
15. Will tubing that is manufactured in the US with supporting documentation be adequate in lieu of 

tubing specifically being marked "Made in the USA"?   
Answer:  Yes. 

 
16. Will Weg, Baldor, and/or Marathon electric drive motors be considered approved equals?  

Answer:  Yes, provided all other performance criteria are met. 
 



17. Will a motor designed for the site ambient of 94F be acceptable?  Based on the 115F requirement 
of the motor, a derate of a higher HP motor will be required, resulting in custom motor and 
additional project costs.   

             Answer:  Yes, high ambient temperature of 94ºF for design basis is acceptable. 
 
18. Monitoring of motor high winding temperature is requested but is not specifically identified.  

Please confirm if a standard practice of motors without winding sensor is acceptable?   
Answer:  Omit this requirement. 
 

19.        Typical coil design utilizes ASTM 249 for coils stage 1-3 and ASTM 213 for the final stage, 
             please confirm this is acceptable. Additionally, please confirm that the induced draft design 
             is acceptable. 
             Answer: Welded SS tubing per ASTM 249 for stages other than final, and seamless per 
             ASTM 213 for final stage are acceptable, provided required MAWP is met for each stage.  
             The induced-draft design for the cooler is acceptable. 
 
20.       Industry standard practice is to utilize zinc coated carbon steel Parker Seal-Lok for larger tube 
            fitting needs rated for the appropriately for the pressure they service.  Please confirm if this is 
            acceptable.   
            Answer:  Yes, zinc-coated CS fittings for this application are acceptable. 
 
21.      Please confirm that ball valves 2" and over can utilize painted carbon steel bodies, the specification 
           and the drawings have conflicting requests.   
           Answer:  This is acceptable, provided that all valve parts are listed for methane and appropriate 
           working pressures. 

 
22.      Will the City provide photos of the interior of the existing CNG station?  
           Answer: See attached photos. 
 
 
Plan Set 
 
1. Insert attached standard PNM drawings and guidelines for transformer installation. (7 pages) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Interior Photos of the Existing CNG Station  
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